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- Certified Public Accountant -  

133 W. MAIN STREET MORENCI, MI 49256 
PHONE: (517) 458-2274 

FAX: (517) 458-6353 
 
 

  September 4, 2025 
Honorable Mayor and Members 
  of the City Council 
City of Hudson 
121 N. Church St. 
Hudson, Michigan  49247 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Hudson, Michigan as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of City of Hudson, Michigan as of June 30, 2025 and the respective changes in 
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City of Hudson, Michigan, and 
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Hudson, Michigan’s, ability to continue as 
a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information 
that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.  
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Honorable Mayor and Members 
   of the City Council 
City of Hudson 
September 4, 2025 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the 
financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Hudson, Michigan’s, internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the City of Hudson, Michigan’s, ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified 
during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
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Members of the Village Council 
Honorable Mayor and Members 
   of the City Council 
City of Hudson  
September 4, 2025 

Other Information  

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises 
the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express 
an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and 
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, 
or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude 
that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our 
report. 

 
 

 
 

                                                                                                                          Respectfully Submitted, 

                Shea & Associates 
                                                                                            Morenci, Michigan 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Using This Annual Report 
 
As management of City of Hudson, Michigan, we offer readers of City of Hudson, Michigan’s these financial 
statements. This narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of City of Hudson, Michigan is for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. 
 
The annual report consists of a series of financial statements.  The statement of net position and the statement of 
activities provide information about the activities of City of Hudson, Michigan’s government-wide basis.  They are 
designed to present a longer-term view of the City’s finances.  Fund financial statements tell how services were 
financed in the short-term, as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the 
City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
The assets of the City of Hudson, Michigan exceeded its liabilities at the end of the fiscal year by $11,337,284 
(net position). The City had a balance of unrestricted funds of $2,061,714 at the end of the year. 
 
The City’s total net position increased by $484,642, governmental activities increased by $371,761 and business-
type activities increased by $112,881.  Government activities increased over the prior year due to revenues 
increasing by $6,829 and expenditures increasing by $47,665. 
 
Business activities increased in the current year by $112,881 compared to the prior year increase of $300,098. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 
 
 A) Government-wide financial statements. 
 
 B) Fund financial statements. 
 
 C) Notes to the financial statements. 
 
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements 
themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this 
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.                       
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of City of Hudson, Michigan that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that 
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 

activities).  The governmental activities of City of Hudson, Michigan include general government, public safety, 
recreation and culture, public works, community and economic development and other functions.  The business-
type activity of City of Hudson, Michigan includes the water and sewer system. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on (pages 14-16) of this report. 

 
Fund Financial Statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  City of Hudson, Michigan, like other 
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related 
legal requirements.  All of the funds of City of Hudson, Michigan can be divided into three categories:  
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide 
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 

spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such 
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financial requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
City of Hudson, Michigan maintains thirteen individual governmental funds.  Information is presented in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balance.  The General Fund, Ambulance, Income Tax, Fire, Major and Local Streets Funds are 
considered to be major funds. 
 
City of Hudson, Michigan adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund, Ambulance, Income Tax, 
Fire, Major and Local Street Funds.  A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for these funds to 
demonstrate compliance with budget. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on (pages 17-20) of this report. 
 
Proprietary Fund.  City of Hudson, Michigan maintains one type of Proprietary Fund.  Enterprise Funds are used 
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
City of Hudson, Michigan uses an Enterprise Fund to account for its Sewer Fund and Water Fund.                         
     
Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in 
more detail.  The Proprietary Fund financial statements provide separate information for the Sewer Fund and 
Water Fund shown as the (Utilities Fund) which is considered to be major funds of City of Hudson, Michigan. 
 
The basic Proprietary financial statements can be found on (pages 21-25) of this report. 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Fiduciary Funds.  Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the 
government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the 
resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Hudson, Michigan’s own programs.  The 
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.  
 
The basic Fiduciary financial statements can be found on (page 26) of this report. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this 
statement of some times that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported 
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities).  The governmental activities of the City 
include general government, public safety, public works, recreation and culture, community and economic 
development and other functions. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s financial position.  The assets 
of the City exceeded the liabilities by $11,337,284 at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
By far the largest portion of the City’s net position (75.47%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, vehicles, equipment, and infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire these assets that are still 
outstanding.  The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending. 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   
 

  CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN NET POSITION 

 
 Governmental Activities  

 
  2025  2024   
Assets 
 
Current and Other Assets $2,496,951 $2,131,090 
Capital Assets   6,600,374   6,796,858 

 
 Total Assets   9,097,325   8,927,948 

 
Liabilities 
 
Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding      960,070   1,166,032 
Other Liabilities      153,917      150,339 

 
 Total Liabilities   1,113,987   1,316,371 

 
Net Position 
 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt   5,640,304   5,630,826 
Restricted      719,509      911,077 
Unrestricted   1,623,525   1,069,674 

 
 Total Net Position $7,983,338  $7,611,577 
  

 
 Business Activities 

 
  2025  2024   
Assets 
 
Current and Other Assets $   474,165                    $   561,183 
Capital Assets   6,660,757   6,715,791 

 
 Total Assets   7,134,922   7,276,974 

 
Liabilities 
 
Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding   3,745,000   3,975,000 
Other Liabilities        35,976        60,909 

 
 Total Liabilities   3,780,976   4,035,909 

 
Net Position 
 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt   2,915,757    2,740,791 
Unrestricted      438,189      500,274 

 
 Total Net Position $3,353,946                    $3,241,065 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   
  

 CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN NET POSITION 

 
 Governmental Activities 
 
 2025 2024   
Revenue 
 
Program Revenue: 
   Charges for Services $1,906,415 $1,806,584 
   Operating Grants and Contributions      520,286      678,725 
   Capital Grants and Contributions             - - -             - - - 
 
General Revenue:  
   Property Taxes/Special Assessments   1,343,434   1,396,581 
   Grants and Contributions Not 
      Restricted To Specific Program      344,691      341,015 
   Interest and Rentals      112,771        95,229 
   Other Revenue        97,366                                - - -  

  
 Total Revenue   4,324,963   4,318,134 

 
 

Expenses 
 
General Government      883,650      923,432 
Public Safety   1,385,970   1,409,700 
Public Works   1,206,022   1,177,539 
Community and Economic Development             302             417 
Recreation and Culture        77,760      104,377  
Interest on Long-Term Debt        61,424        47,839 
Other Functions      138,356      124,304 
Interfund Transfers                                                                            199,718                         117,929 
 
 Total Expenses   3,953,202   3,905,537 
 
 
Increase (Decrease) In Net Position      371,761      412,597 
 
Net Position Beginning of Year   7,611,577   7,198,980 
 
Net Position End of Year $7,983,338 $7,611,577 

 
 
 
The City’s unrestricted net position of governmental activities reflected a balance of $1,623,525 at the end of the 
fiscal year. The amount invested in capital assets, net of related debt for government activities amounted to a 
balance of $5,640,304. 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   
  

  CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN NET POSITION 

 
 Business-Type Activities 
 
 2025 2024   
Revenue 
 
Program Revenue: 
   Charges for Services $ 1,322,930  $ 1,243,454  
 
General Revenue:  
   Interest Income         11,198         12,443  
   Grants           2,013       192,411 
   Other Revenue           9,508                                - - - 
  
 Total Revenue    1,345,649    1,448,308 

 
 

Expenses 
 
Interest on Long-Term Debt         76,437         80,071 
Utilities Expenses    1,356,049    1,186,068 
 
 Total Expenses    1,432,486    1,266,139 
 
 
Increase (Decrease) In Net Position before Transfers                   (86,837)      182,169 
 
Transfers In       199,718       117,929 
 
Increase (Decrease) In Net Position       112,881       300,098 
 
Net Position Beginning of Year    3,241,065    2,940,967 
 
Net Position End of Year $ 3,353,946 $ 3,241,065 
 
 
 
A portion of the City of Hudson, Michigan’s net position for business-type activities of $2,915,757 represents 
resources that are invested in capital assets, net of related debt.  The City’s business-type activities shows an 
unrestricted fund balance of $438,189. 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   
  

      CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN NET POSITION                         
              
                     Component Unit Activities                                           
 
 DDA DDA  
 2025 2024   
Assets 
 
Current and Other Assets $  19,151 $  43,171 
Capital Assets   262,029   254,175 
 
   Total Assets   281,180   297,346 
 
 
Liabilities  
 
Current Liabilities          - - -          - - - 
Deferred Revenue          - - -          - - - 
 
 
 Total Liabilities          - - -          - - - 
 
Net Position 
 
Invested in Capital Assets   262,209   254,175 
Unrestricted     19,151     43,171 
 
 Total Net Position   281,180   297,346 
 

 
Revenue 
 
Community Development:             
   Miscellaneous Income          - - -           - - - 
   Rental Income          - - -           - - - 
   Interest Income          - - -                      - - -  
 
 Total Revenue          - - -           - - - 
 
 
Expenses  
 
Expenditures     16,166     14,791 
 
 Total Expenses     16,166     14,791 
 
 
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position   (16,166)  (14,791) 
 
Net Position Beginning of Year   297,346   312,137 

 
Net Position End of Year $281,180 $297,346 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

    
Government Activities 
 
Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $371,761 in the current fiscal year; by comparison, in 
the prior year, governmental activities net position increased by $412,587. 
 
Key elements in the change of the current year: 
 

• Decrease in tax revenues of $53,147. 
• Increase in total expenditures of $47,665. 
• Increase in charges for services of $99,831. 
• Increase in interest and rentals of $17,542. 

 
Business-Type Activities 
 
As mentioned under the financial highlights above the business-type activities increased by $112,881 in the 
current fiscal year; by comparison, in the prior year, business-type activities net position increased by $300,098. 
 
Key elements for change include: 
 

• Decrease in total expenditures of $166,347 
• Increase in charges for services of $79,476. 
• Decrease in Grant Revenue of $190,398. 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

    
Financial Analysis of City’s Funds 
 
The City uses fund accounting to insure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements. 
 
 Governmental Funds 
 

As mentioned in the beginning of the Discussion and Analysis the focus of the City’s governmental 
funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  
The unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of the City’s net resources available for 
spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $1,995,391, an increase of $327,112, in comparison to the prior year.  Approximately 
61.52% of this total amount is unassigned fund balances, which is available for spending at the City’s 
discretion. 

 
The General Fund reported an increase in fund balance of $455,535 over the prior year, resulting in an 
unassigned fund balance of $1,070,765.  As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful 
to compare unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures and transfers out.  Unassigned fund 
balance represents 58.7% of the total general fund expenditures and transfers out. 

 
The increase is mostly attributable to an increase in public works expenditures of $82,387 and an 
increase in total revenue of $94,197. 
 
The Ambulance Fund reported a decrease in fund balance of $16,843 over the prior year.  Charges for 
services increased by $26,160 and total expenditures decreased by $162,556. The fund balance ended 
with a deficit of $12,579. 
 
The Income Tax Fund reported a decrease in fund balance of $99,865.  Revenues decreased by 
$64,205, while general governmental expenses increased by $14,908.  The fund balance ended at 
$144,665. 
 
The Major Street Fund reported an increase in fund balance of $72,212.  Revenues from grants 
increased $15,337, and public works expenditures increased by $31,244.  The fund balance ended at 
$411,610. 
 
The Local Street Fund reported a decrease in fund balance of $40,556.  Revenue increased by $6,201 
and expenditures increased by $80,558.  The fund balance ended at $50,395. 
 
The Fire Fund reported an increase in the fund balance of $8,521.  Expenditures increased by 
$41,408, and revenues decreased by $17,808.  The ending fund balance was $148,511. 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Proprietary Fund 
 
The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the business-type activities of the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Unrestricted net position of the utilities funds at the end of the year amounted to $383,527 for the current fiscal 
year and $458,745 for the prior year.  The utilities fund had an increase in total net position for the year of 
$99,748.  Most of the increase is attributable to an increase in charges for services of $69,661. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The original budget called for a decrease in fund balance of $104,663.  The amended budget was for an increase 
in fund balance of $162,702 (See pages 46-47). 
 
For the fiscal year of 2025, the budgetary estimate for the net change in fund balance was an increase of 
$162,702; the actual was an increase of $455,535 for a total variance from the budget of $292,833. 
 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2025, 
amounted to $13,261,131 (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital assets includes land, 
buildings and system, improvements, machinery, and equipment.  The total increase in the City’s investment in 
capital assets for the current year was $505,916.  See (page 35) for types of capital assets purchased. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates 
 
The City’s budget for 2025-2026 year has taken inconsideration, the economic condition, and its effect on 
revenues.  This will require close tabs on expenditures for the upcoming year and adjustments will be made to 
mirror, when possible, the revenue base, with expenses. 
 
The following factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget. 
 

• To maintain services to the community and maintain an adequate fund balance in reserve. 
 

• To be aware of economic conditions, sources of revenue and potential changes within the 
community. 

 
• To continue to improve infrastructure. 

 
• To service outstanding debts while sustaining essential government functions. 
 

Contacting The City’s Management 
 
This financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors with a general 
overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you have 
questions about this report or need additional information, we welcome you to contact the clerk’s office at 121 N. 
Church Street, Hudson, Michigan 49247. 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Government-wide Statement of Net Position 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

  Governmental Business-Type  Component  
      Activities     Activities Total       Units 
Assets 
 
Cash and Equivalents $2,156,039 $   262,991 $  2,419,030 $  19,151 
Investments             - - -             - - -               - - -          - - - 
Receivables - Net      336,055      145,832        481,887          - - - 
Inventory             - - -        14,068          14,068          - - - 
Prepaid Items and   
   Other Assets       56,131             - - -          56,131          - - - 
Interfund Balances                                            (51,274)                    51,274                       - - -                      - - - 
Capital Assets Not 
   Being Depreciated      266,833        33,600        300,433     32,400 
Capital Assets Being 
   Depreciated - Net   6,333,541   6,627,157   12,960,698   229,629 
     
 Total Assets   9,097,325    7,134,922   16,232,247   281,180 
 
 
Liabilities 
 
Accounts Payable and 
   Accrued Expenses      153,917        35,996        189,893         - - - 
 
     
Long-Term Liabilities:  
   Due Within One Year      179,123      235,000        414,123          - - - 
   Due In More Than One Year      780,947   3,510,000     4,290,947          - - - 
     
 Total Liabilities   1,113,987    3,780,976     4,894,963          - - - 
 
 
Net Position 
 
Invested In Capital Assets,  
   Net of Related Debt   5,640,304   2,915,757     8,556,061   262,209 
Restricted      719,509             - - -        719,509          - - - 
Unrestricted   1,623,525      438,189     2,061,714     19,151 
     
 Total Net Position $7,983,338  $3,353,946 $11,337,284 $281,180 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.                                       Page 14 



 

 

CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Government-wide Statement of Activities 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

                                        Operating      Capital                 Net        
   Charges for   Grants and   Grants and        (Expenses)  
Functions/Programs Expenses    Services Contributions Contributions Revenues 
 
Primary Government 
   Governmental Activities: 
 
  General Government $   883,650 $1,091,238 $    5,320 $       - - - $     212,908 
  Public Safety   1,385,970      645,548     87,839          - - -      (652,583) 
  Public Works   1,206,022      148,257   427,127          - - -      (630,638) 
  Community and 
     Economic 
     Development             302             - - -          - - -          - - -                    (302) 
  Recreation 
     and Culture        77,760        21,372          - - -          - - -                (56,388) 
  Interest on 
     Long-Term Debt        61,424             - - -          - - -          - - -        (61,424) 
  Other Functions      138,356             - - -          - - -        - - -      (138,356) 
     
 Total Governmental 
    Activities   3,753,484   1,906,415   520,286          - - -   (1,326,783) 
 
 
Business-Type Activities: 
 
Public Works   1,356,049   1,322,930       2,013          - - -        (31,106) 
Interest on 
   Long-Term Debt        76,437             - - -          - - -                   - - -        (76,437) 
     
 Total Business-Type 
    Activities   1,432,486  1,322,930       2,013         - - -       (107,543) 
 

 Total Primary 
    Government   5,185,970            3,229,345   522,299                  - - -    (1,434,326) 
 
 

Component Units: 
 
Downtown Development 
   Authority        16,166             - - -          - - -          - - -        (16,166) 
     

 Total Component Unit $     16,166 $          - - - $       - - -  $      - - - $     (16,166) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.                                       Page 15 



 

 

CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Government-wide Statement of Activities (Concluded) 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Primary Government 
 
 Governmental Business-Type  Component 
     Activities     Activities        Total       Units 
Changes in Net Position 
 
Net (Expense) Revenue $(1,326,783) $ (107,543) $(1,434,326) $(16,166) 
   
General Revenues (Expense):  
  Tax Collections     1,343,434                      - - -     1,343,434          - - - 
  Grants and Contributions 
     Not Restricted To 
     Specific Programs        344,691             - - -        344,691          - - - 
  Interest and Rentals        112,771        11,198        123,969          - - - 
  Interfund Transfers                                       (199,718)                199,718                         - - -                     - - - 
  Other Revenue                                                97,366                     9,508                  106,874                     - - - 
      
 Total General Revenues, 
    Contributions and Transfers     1,698,544       220,424     1,918,968          - - - 
  
 
Change in Net Position       371,761               112,881        484,642    (16,166) 

 
 
Net Position, Beginning of Year     7,611,577     3,241,065   10,852,642    297,346 
  

 
Net Position, End of Year $  7,983,338         $ 3,353,946 $11,337,284 $ 281,180 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.                                      Page 16 



 

 

CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
    
 
 

 General  Ambulance Income Tax   

   Fund    Fund      Fund   

Assets 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $1,047,639              $  75,689  $144,665 
Prepaid Expenses        55,942          - - -          - - - 
Receivables - Net        26,278     67,130         95,602 
Receivable from Other Governments        57,636          - - -          - - - 
Inventories             - - -          - - -          - - - 
Due from Other Funds              619          - - -          - - - 
 
 Total Assets   1,188,114   142,819   240,267 

 
 

Deferred Inflow of Resources 
 
Income/Property Taxes          8,985       1,936     95,602 
 
 Total Deferred Inflow of Resources          8,985       1,936     95,602 
 

 
Liabilities 
 
Accounts Payable/ 
   Accrued Liabilities        48,534     25,987          - - - 
Due to Other Funds             - - -   127,475           - - - 
 
 Total Liabilities        48,534   153,462          - - - 
 
 
Fund Balances 
 
Non-Spendable:  
   Inventories            - - -          - - -          - - - 
   Prepaid Expenses        55,942          - - -          - - - 
 
Restricted For:  
   Public Safety - Ambulance             - - -   (12,579)             - - - 
   Public Safety - Fire             - - -          - - -          - - - 
   Public Safety - Police          3,888          - - -          - - - 
   Public Works - Roads             - - -          - - -          - - - 
   Recreation and Culture             - - -          - - -          - - - 
   Cemetery and Perpetual Care             - - -          - - -          - - - 
   Capital Improvements             - - -          - - -          - - - 
 
Unassigned   1,070,765          - - -    144,665 
 
 Total Fund Balances (Deficit)   1,130,595   (12,579)    144,665 
 
 Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $1,188,114 $142,819  $240,267 
 

 
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



 

 

 
 
 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

    
          Other     
      Non-Major           Total 

  Fire Major Street Local Street Governmental Governmental    
 Fund      Fund      Fund       Funds        Funds     
 
 
        $142,504 $365,948                  $  40,898 $153,209 $1,970,552  
        189          - - -           - - -             - - -        56,131 
   19,057            - - -         - - -          - - -      274,032 
        - - -       49,400    16,565                  - - -        57,636 

        - - -                  - - -         - - -          - - -                                 - - - 
        - - -        3,388         - - -          - - -          4,007 

 
          161,750   418,736                      57,463   153,209   2,362,358 

 
 

 
 

          - - -          - - -                          - - -          - - -      106,523 

 

                 - - -          - - -                          - - -           - - -      106,523 
 
 
 
 

         
            13,239       7,126      7,068     31,015      132,969 
                 - - -          - - -           - - -           - - -      127,475 

      13,239       7,126                       7,068      31,015      260,444 
 
 
 

 
 

          - - -          - - -         - - -          - - -             - - - 
        189          - - -         - - -          - - -        56,131 

 
 
        - - -          - - -         - - -          - - -      (12,579)  
     148,322          - - -         - - -          - - -      148,322 
             - - -            - - -         - - -          - - -          3,888 
        - - -   411,610                      50,395          - - -      462,005 
           - - -          - - -         - - -     44,183        44,183 
           - - -          - - -         - - -     35,775        35,775 
           - - -          - - -         - - -     30,064         30,064 

 
         - - -          - - -                           - - -     12,172   1,227,602 

 
          148,511   411,610                      50,395   122,194   1,995,391 
 
        $161,750                   $ 418,736                 $   57,463 $153,209 $2,362,358    
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Reconciliation of Fund Balances on the Balance Sheet for Governmental Funds 

To Net Position of Governmental Activities on the Statement of Net Position 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
  

Fund Balances – Total Governmental Funds $    1,995,391 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of net position are different because: 
 
 Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
 financial resources and therefore are not reported in 
 the funds. 
 
  Add: Capital Assets     18,669,193 
 
  (Deduct): Accumulated Depreciation   (12,068,819) 
 

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the 
costs of certain equipment usage to individual governmental 
funds.  The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund 
are included in governmental activities in the statement of net 
position. 
 

  Add:   Net Position of governmental activities accounted 
         for in the internal service fund.          261,180 

 
 
 Certain liabilities, such as notes payable, are not due and  
 payable in the current period and therefore are not reported 
 in the funds. 
 
                   (Deduct): Notes Payable- Vacuum Truck                                                                                  (77,965) 
   
  (Deduct):   Notes Payable- Ambulance          (80,191)        

   
  (Deduct):   Notes Payable- Fire Truck        (230,535) 
             

                   (Deduct):   Capital Improvement Bond        (566,000) 
 
  (Deduct):   Compensated Absences Long-term            (5,379) 
 
  (Deduct):   Accrued Interest Payable          (20,060) 
 
 
 Revenue that has been billed as a receivable, but not collected 
 until later years, was not reported in the funds. 
 
  Add:   Deferred Inflow of Resources – Property / Income Tax          106,523  

 
 Net Position of Governmental Activities $    7,983,338 
 
 
 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.                                       Page 18 



 

 

CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Governmental Funds 

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
    
 
 

 General Ambulance Income Tax   
   Fund      Fund      Fund   
Revenues 
 
Taxes $   640,778 $  59,907 $ 641,833 
Intergovernmental      344,691          - - -           - - - 
Licenses and Permits        17,530          - - -           - - - 
Fines and Forfeitures          3,417          - - -           - - - 
Charges for Services   1,239,495   628,018           - - - 
Interest and Rentals        48,466       4,422        6,500 
Contributions from Local Units             - - -          - - -           - - - 
Other         59,490          - - -           - - - 
Grants             5,320          - - -           - - - 
Contributions             - - -          - - -           - - - 
 
 Total Revenue   2,359,187   692,347    648,333 

 
 

Expenditures 
 
Current: 
   General Government      548,438                   - - -    173,377 
   Public Safety      348,699   763,385           - - - 
   Public Works      869,951          - - -           - - -   
   Community Economic Development             302          - - -           - - - 
   Recreation and Culture             - - -          - - -           - - - 
   Capital Outlay        76,824          - - -           - - - 
   Other Functions      138,356                   - - -                - - - 
Debt Service:  
   Principal Payments             - - -     25,071           - - - 
   Interest Payments             - - -       8,735           - - - 
  
 Total Expenditures   1,982,570   797,190    173,377 
 
 
Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures      376,617               (104,843)    474,956 
 
 
Other Financing Sources (Uses)  
 
Transfers In      187,000     88,000              - - - 
Transfers Out    (108,082)          - - -     (574,821) 
Loan Proceeds             - - -          - - -           - - - 

 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)       78,918     88,000  (574,821) 
 
 
Net Change in Fund Balances (Decrease)      455,535   (16,843)    (99,865) 
 
Fund Balances – Beginning of Year      675,060       4,264    244,530 
 
Fund Balances (Deficit) – End of Year $ 1,130,595 $ (12,579) $ 144,665 
 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



 

 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
    
          Other     
          Non-Major           Total 

  Fire Major Street Local Street Governmental Governmental    
 Fund       Fund      Fund       Funds        Funds     
 
 
             - - -           - - -           - - -          - - -   1,342,518 
           - - -    309,985    117,142          - - -      771,818 
           - - -           - - -           - - -          - - -        17,530 
           - - -           - - -           - - -          - - -          3,417 
               - - -           - - -           - - -     21,372   1,888,885 
           5,090       12,878        3,437     31,978      112,771 
      87,539           - - -           - - -          - - -        87,539 

        8,503           - - -           - - -     25,956        93,949 
               - - -           - - -           - - -          - - -          5,320 
           300           - - -           - - -          - - -             300 
    101,432    322,863    120,579     79,306   4,324,047 

 
 

 

 
             - - -           - - -           - - -     76,950      798,765 
    112,422           - - -           - - -          - - -   1,224,505 
              - - -    180,651      82,008          - - -   1,132,610 
           - - -           - - -           - - -          - - -             302 
           - - -           - - -           - - -     52,205        52,205 
         6,987           - - -    149,127     24,523      257,461 

           - - -           - - -           - - -          - - -      138,356 
        
      53,091           - - -           - - -     65,000      143,162 
        9,390           - - -           - - -     31,726        49,851 

 
    181,870    180,651    231,135   250,404    3,797,217 
 
  
   (80,458)    142,212  (110,556) (171,098)      526,830  
  
 

 
      95,480           - - -      70,000   199,435         639,915 
              (6,501)    (70,000)           - - -   (80,229)       (839,633) 
           - - -           - - -           - - -          - - -             - - - 
     
      88,979     (70,000)      70,000   119,206    (199,718) 

 
 

        8,521      72,212     (40,556)    (51,892)      327,112 
 
   139,990    339,398      90,951   174,086   1,668,279 
 
 $ 148,511 $ 411,610 $   50,395 $122,194                      $1,995,391 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

And Changes in Fund Balances Of Governmental Statement of Activities 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   
   

Net Change in Fund Balances – Total Governmental Funds $  327,239 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 
 
 Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the 
 statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
 useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 
 
  Add: Capital Outlay     274,038 

 
  (Deduct): Depreciation Expense   (470,522) 

 
 Note proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds in the 
 period issued, but issuing notes increase long-term liabilities in the statement of 
 net position.  Repayment of note principal is an expenditure in the governmental 
 funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 

 
  Add: Principal payments on long-term liabilities     167,188 
 
  (Deduct): Accrued interest on long-term debt     (11,573) 
 
     
 Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use 
 of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures 
 in the funds. 
 
  Add: Decrease in compensated absences long-term       38,774 
 
 An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of certain 
 equipment usage to individual governmental funds.  The assets and liabilities 
 of the internal service fund are included in governmental activities in the 
 statement of net position. 
 
   Add: Increase in net position of governmental activities 
   accounted for in the internal service fund       45,828 
 
 Revenue deferred on the governmental funds report, which has been charged 
 to receivable and thus income on the statement of activities.       
 
   Add: Increase in deferred revenue           916 
 

 
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $  371,761 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 Business-Type Activities -   Governmental 
       Enterprise Funds        Activities 
 Utilities Fund Internal Service Fund 
Assets 
Current Assets:   
   Cash and Cash Equivalents $   262,991  $185,487 
   Accounts Receivable      145,832       3,768 
   Inventory        14,068          - - - 
   Prepaid Interest             - - -          - - - 
   Due From Other Funds                                                                 - - -                                           127,475 
 
 Total Current Assets      422,891   316,730 
 
Non-Current Assets:  
   Property and Equipment - Net   6,660,757   283,573 
    
 Total Non-Current Assets   6,660,757   283,573 
 Total Assets $7,083,648 $600,303 
 
Liabilities 
Current Liabilities:  
   Accounts Payable and Accrued 
      Liabilities/Deposits                                                                35,976           888 
Due to Other Funds          3,388          - - - 
Bonds Payable, Current Portion                                                235,000                                                  - - -          
Notes Payable Current Portion                                                         - - -                                             25,011 
  
 Total Current Liabilities      274,364     25,899  
 
Non-Current Liabilities:  
   Bonds Payable   3,510,000          - - -  
   Notes Payable                                                                              - - -                                             52,954 
  
 Total Non-Current Liabilities   3,510,000     52,954 
 Total Liabilities   3,784,364     78,853 
 
Net Position 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt   2,915,757   205,608 
Unrestricted      383,527   315,842 
 
 Total Net Position   3,299,284   521,450 
 
Adjustment to Reflect the Consolidation 
  of Internal Service Fund Activities Related 
  to Enterprise Funds        54,662 
 
Net Position of Business-Type Activities on the 
  Government-Wide Statement of Net Position $3,353,946 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.                                          Page 21 



 

 

CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 Business-Type Activities -   Governmental 
       Enterprise Funds        Activities  
 
 Utilities Fund Internal Service Fund 
Operating Revenues 
 
Charges for Services $1,309,797 $207,735 
  
Operating Expenses 
 
Salaries and Wages      143,677          - - -  
Fringe Benefits        86,064          - - - 
Office Expenses        15,437          - - - 
Contractual Services      524,746     60,233 
Supplies and Materials      130,930     19,058 
Utilities            96,031          - - - 
Depreciation      286,912     46,433 
Repairs/Maintenance        65,080     38,183 
Other Expenses          7,172          500 
   
 Total Operating Expenses   1,356,049   164,407 
 
 Operating (Loss) Income      (46,252)     43,328 
 
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)   
  
Investment Income        11,198      11,491 
Interest (Expense)      (76,437)     (4,179) 
Other - Miscellaneous          9,508       2,491 
Grant Revenue - State          2,013          - - -  

 
 Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)      (53,718)       9,804 
 
Other Financing Sources 
 
Transfer In      275,570          - - - 
Transfer Out                                                                               (75,852)                                                - - - 
 
 Total Other Financing Sources      199,718          - - - 

 
 Net Income (Loss)        99,748     53,132 

 
 Net Position, Beginning of Year   3,199,536   468,318 

 
 Net Position, End of Year $3,299,284 $521,450 
 

 
 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.                                     Page 22 
 



 

 

CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, to the Statement of Activities 

Proprietary Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   
  

Change in Net Position – All Enterprise Funds $   99,748 
 
An internal service fund is used by management to charge 
the cost of certain equipment usage to individual 
enterprise funds.  The net revenue (expense) attributable 
to those funds is reported with the business-type activities      13,133 
 
 Change in Net Position of Business-Type Activities $ 112,881 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.                                             Page 23 



 

 

CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 Business-Type Activities   Governmental 
       Enterprise Funds        Activities  
 
 Utilities Fund Internal Service Fund 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
 
Cash Received from Customers $1,298,444 $ 221,911 
Cash Payment to Suppliers For  
   Goods and Services/Employees  (1,094,070)     (117,594) 
 
 Net Cash Provided (Used)      204,374     104,317 
 
Cash Flows from Capital and 
  Related Financing Activities   
     
 Grant Revenue - State          2,013            - - - 
 Purchase of Capital Assets    (231,878)                                          (16,577) 
 Sale of Capital Assets                                                                     - - -                                                  - - - 
 Bond/Note Principal Payments    (230,000)    (24,026) 
 Bond/Note Interest Payments      (76,437)      (4,179) 
 Loan Proceeds             - - -           - - - 
 Transfer In (Out)      199,718           - - - 
 Net Cash (Used) by Capital and 
   Related Financing Activities    (336,584)     (44,782) 
 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
   
Investment Income        11,198      11,491 
 
 Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
   Investing Activities        11,198      11,491 
 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and 
  Cash Equivalents    (121,012)           71,026 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year      384,003     114,461 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year      262,991    185,487 
 
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents       262,991    185,487 
 
  $   262,991 $ 185,487 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.                                           Page 24 



 

 

CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Statement of Cash Flows (Concluded) 

Proprietary Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Business-Type Activities -   Governmental 
       Enterprise Funds        Activities  
 
 Utilities Fund Internal Service Fund 
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) 
  to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities   
 
  Income (Loss) $    (46,252) $   43,328 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) 
   to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:      

        Depreciation/Amortization       286,912      46,433 
 Changes in Assets and Liabilities:  
      Accounts Receivable, and Current Assets       (20,861)      11,685 

 Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities       (24,933)           380 
    
 Net Cash Provided (Used) by  
   Operating Activities       194,866    101,826 
 
Cash Flows from Capital Activities 
 
Acquisition of Capital Assets     (231,878)   (16,577) 
Sale of Capital Assets                                                                              - - -                                          - - - 
 
 Net Cash (Used) from Capital Activities     (231,878)                                   (16,577) 
 
Cash Flows from Financing Activities: 
            
Loan Proceeds                                                                                        - - -                                           - - -  
Grant Revenue - State           2,013           - - - 
Interest Income         11,198      11,491 
Principal Paid on Bonds     (230,000)    (24,026) 
Interest Paid on Bonds       (76,437)      (4,179) 
Miscellaneous Income           9,508        2,491 
Transfer In (Out)       199,718            - - - 
 
 Net Cash (Used) from Financing Activities      (84,000)    (14,223)                
  
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and 
   Cash Equivalents     (121,012)       71,026 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year       384,003     114,461 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year       262,991                                    185,487 
 
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents       262,991    185,487 
 
  $    262,991 $ 185,487 
 
 
 

 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.                                     Page 25 



 

 

CITY OF HUDSON 
Fiduciary Funds – Statement of Net Position 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

       Current                                Total  
 Tax Collection         Payroll                   Custodial  
         Fund                  Fund                        Funds 
 
Assets  
   
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,331                  $31,219                $32,550 
 
 Total Assets    1,331                    31,219                    32,550 
 
Liabilities  
   
Due to Other Authorities       712                    31,219                    31,931 
Due to General Fund       619                         - - -                        619 
 
 Total Liabilities $  1,331                 $31,219                  $32,550 
 
 
 

  
 

Fiduciary Funds – Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

 
 
                                                                           Current Tax             Payroll                 Total Custodial             
                                                                                     Collection                Fund                          Funds 
Additions                                                                                                                    
Property Tax Collections                                             $2,245,992           $          - - -                   $ 2,245,992        
Miscellaneous                                                                          - - -             2,386,912                     2,386,912 
 
          Total Additions                                                  2,245,992             2,386,912                     4,632,904 
 
Deductions 
Payments of property taxes                    
 to other governments                                                   2,245,992                       - - -                      2,245,992      
Miscellaneous                                                                          - - -             2,386,912                    2,386,912 
 
          Total Deductions                                               2,245,992             2,386,912                     4,632,904 
                  
Changes in Net Position                                                       - - -                       - - -                               - - - 
Net position, beginning of year                                            - - -                       - - -                               - - - 
                  
Net Position, end of year                                          $           - - -           $          - - -                  $           - - -   
 
 
  
 
 
 
     

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.                                      Page 26 



 

 

CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Description of City Operations 
 
The City of Hudson, Michigan operates under a Council form of government, with a City Manager and provides 
services to its residents in many areas including public safety, public works, community and economic 
development and human services. 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standards setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more significant of the government’s 
accounting policies are described below: 
 
The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, for which the 
government is considered financially accountable. 
 
The discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial 
statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the primary government. 
 
Discretely Presented Component Unit 
 
The Downtown Development Authority (DDA) is also governed by a board of directors and promotes economic 
improvements and growth for the downtown area of the City. 
 
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of changes in 
net position) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government.  For the most 
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.  Governmental activities, 
normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 
activities which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segments are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific 
function or segment.  Program revenues include:  (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment; and (2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenue. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even 
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  Major individual governmental 
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements, except for 
agency funds, which do not have a measurement focus.  Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are 
recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
 
 
 

Page 27 



 

 

CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s water and sewer funds and 
various other functions of the government.  Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and 
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions 3) capital grants and contributions, including special 
assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program 
revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 
 
Fund – Based Statements – Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available if they are collected within 
the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the 
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current 
fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered 
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  Only the 
portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to 
accrual as revenue of the current period.  All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the government. 
 
The government reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources 
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The Ambulance Fund is a special Revenue Fund that receives monies for contractual services and 
charges for the purpose of providing Advanced and Basic Life Support Services to the community. 
 
The Income Tax Fund is a Special Revenue Fund that receives monies from residents, non-residents 
and businesses performing or operating within the City limits of Hudson, Michigan.  These monies have 
been used for special projects, capital in nature. 
 
The Fire Fund is a Special Revenue Fund that receives monies from various governmental units and 
donations to provide for fire protection for the area. 
 
The Major Street Fund is a Special Revenue Fund that receives state and local funding for the 
purpose of construction and maintenance of City streets designated as major streets under State of 
Michigan Act 51 of Public Acts of 1951. 
 
The Local Street Fund is a Special Revenue Fund that receives state and local funding for the 
purpose of construction and maintenance of City streets designated as local streets under State of 
Michigan Act 51 of Public Acts of 1951. 
 
The Capital Improvement Fund accounts for funds accumulated for capital improvement projects and 
for principal and interest payments on long-term general obligation debt. 
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The government reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 

The Utilities Fund accounts for acquisition, operation and maintenance of the City’s wastewater and water 
system. 

 
The government reports the following component unit: 
 

The Component Unit – consists of the following: 
 

The Downtown Development Authority is a separate entity, considered a component unit 
of the primary government, the City, which provides development for the downtown authority, 
through captured tax revenues. The financial reporting is on a modified accrual method of 
accounting. 

 
Private-sector standards of accounting issued prior to December 1, 1989, are generally followed in both the 
government-side and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with 
the standards of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  The government has elected not to follow 
private-sector standards issued after November 30, 1989, for its business-type activities and enterprise funds. 
 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenue include:  (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or 
privileges provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions, including 
special assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenue rather than as program 
revenue.  Likewise, general revenue includes all taxes. 
 
Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the Utilities Funds are 
charges to customers for sales and services.  The Utilities Funds also recognize, as operating revenues, the 
portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system.  Operating 
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation 
on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
D. Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity 
 
 1. Bank Deposits and Investment 
 
  Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 

investments with a maturity of three months or less when acquired.  Investments are stated at fair 
value. 

 
  State statues authorize the government to deposit in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit 

unions, and savings and loans associations, and to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain 
commercial paper, repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances, and mutual funds composed of 
otherwise legal investments. 

 
2. Receivables and Payables 

 
  In general, outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”  Activity 

between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the 
fiscal year is referred to as “advances to/from other funds.”  Any residual balances outstanding 
between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in the government-
wide financial statements as “internal balances.” 

 
 3. Prepaid Items 
   
  Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 

prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements using the consumption method. 
 

4. Inventories 
 

 All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.  Inventories of 
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

 
5. Restricted Assets 

  
 Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds and general obligations bonds, as well as certain 

resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet 
because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.  The bond interest and redemption account 
is used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments.  The bond reserve account is 
used to report resources set aside to make debt service payment on bonds which would otherwise be 
in default.  The replacement account is used to report resources set aside to make major repairs and 
replacements to fixed operation assets of the enterprise fund. 
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6. Capital Assets 
 

 Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., road, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the government 
as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,500 (amount not rounded) and an estimated 
useful life in excess of two years.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical 
cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at 
the date of donation.  
 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of 
the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 
 Assets Years 
  
 Land Improvements 20 – 50 
 Building 10 – 50 
 Machinery, Equipment, 
   And Furnishings   5 – 35 
 Utility Systems 50 – 100 
 Infrastructure 15 – 100 

   Vehicles   5 – 15 
 

7. Compensated Absences 
 
  It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick 

pay benefits.  A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, 
for example, as a result of employee resignations or retirement. 

 
 8. Long-Term Obligations 
 
  In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial 

statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.  
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of 
the bonds using the effective interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond 
premium or discount.  Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the 
term of the related debt. 

 
  In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 

well as bond issuance costs during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources. 

  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts are 
reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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9. Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures 
   
  Fund balance classifications shown in the governmental funds financial statements are non-spendable, 

restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. 
 
  Non-Spendable Fund Balance Classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they 

are either non-spendable in form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 

  Restricted Fund Balance Classification includes amounts that can be spent only for specific 
purposes stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. 

 

Committed Fund Balance Classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific 
purposes determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making 
authority. 
 

Assigned Fund Balance Classification are intended to be used by the government for specific 
purposes but do not meet the criteria of restricted or committed. 
 

 Unassigned Fund Balance Classification is the residual. 
 

When the government incurs an expenditure for purposes for which various fund balance 
classifications can be used it is the government’s policy to use restricted fund balances first, then 
committed, assigned and finally unassigned fund balances. 

 
NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
A. Budgetary Information – Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 

accounting principles for all governmental funds.  All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. 
 
 On or before the end of May of each year, the City Manager presents the proposed budget for review and 

holds public hearings, and a final budget is adopted. 
 
 The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and activity.  The legal level of budgetary control 

(i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is with the City Council. 
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B. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations in Budgeted Funds - P.A. 621 of 1978, as amended, 
provides that a local unit shall not incur expenditures in excess of the amounts appropriated.  During the year 
ended June 30, 2025, the government incurred expenditures in excess of amounts appropriated at the legal 
level of budgetary control as follows: 
 Amended 
   Budget   Actual Variance 
 General Fund: 
   General Government: 
      City Council                                                  $   16,477               $ 16,758          $       281      
      Elections       6,826     12,572                5,746 
      Capital Outlay                                                   67,775                  76,824                 9,069 
          
  Income Tax Fund: 

   Transfers to Funds   444,824   574,821    129,997 
 
                            Fire Fund: 
                              Capital Outlay                                                        - - -                    6,987                6,987 
   
      
NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The government unit’s deposits and investment policy are in accordance with statutory authority. 
 
Below is a reconciliation of deposits and investments as of June 30, 2025: 

 
    Primary Component  
 Statement of Net Position Government      Units   Total 
 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents $   2,419,030 $  19,151 $2,438,181 
  
 
  Totals  $   2,419,030 $  19,151 $2,438,181 
 

 
 Deposits and Investments 
 
 Bank Deposits (Checking, 
    Savings, Money Markets and 
    Certificates of Deposits)   $2,438,181 
 
  Total    $2,438,181 
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The government complies with state law regarding their investment policy.  All deposits are uncollateralized and in 
the government’s name.  Due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and limits of FDIC insurance, the 
government believes it is impractical to insure all bank deposits.  The government does evaluate the financial 
institutions as to risk.  The government has no policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits.  The city’s 
deposits are held in County National Bank sweep accounts, which sweeps available cash in excess of FDIC 
insurance coverage to other banking institutions to generate interest as well as creating increased FDIC insurance 
limits through those institutions. The city’s entire amount of $2,419,030 was covered by FDIC along with the entire 
amount of $19,151 of the component unit.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk - Investment 
 
The government’s only investments are in certificate of deposits which are insured thru the FDIC.  In accordance 
with the government’s investment policy, all investments are held in the name of the government and thus are not 
exposed to custodial credit risks. 

 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.  The 
government’s investment policy will limit the government to the safest types of investments, thus minimizing 
credit risk.  Presently the government has only savings, money markets, and certificates of deposits which are 
partly insured thru FDIC. 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single 
issuer.  The government’s policy does not limit investments to one user.  As of June 30, 2025, the only 
investments held by the City were certificates of deposit, which are included in the cash and cash equivalents 
shown on page 33.    
    
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of investments. 
 In accordance with the government’s investment policy, the government limits interest rate risk by purchasing a 
mix of short- and longer-term investments.  This laddering approach also mates investment maturities to 
projected cash flow needs, thus minimizing interest rate risk and the need to liquidate securities at a loss. 
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as follows: 
 
  Beginning  Ending  
   Balance Increases Decreases Balance 
Governmental Activities 
 
  Capital Assets, Not 
    Being Depreciated: 
       Land $     266,833 $          - - -         $       - - - $      266,833 
         266,833             - - -                  - - -         266,833 
  Capital Assets,    
    Being Depreciated: 
       Buildings     2,100,753        39,154        - - -      2,139,907 
       Vehicles     2,820,519        55,993                  - - -      2,876,512 
       Equipment     3,826,215        29,764                  - - -      3,855,979 
       Infrastructure     9,380,835      149,127                  - - -      9,529,962 
     
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated   18,128,322      274,038                  - - -    18,402,360 
 
  Less Accumulated 
    Depreciation For: 
       Buildings   (1,429,563)      (47,280)        - - -    (1,476,843) 
       Vehicles   (2,124,351)      (87,292)                 - - -    (2,211,643) 
       Equipment   (2,486,642)    (106,107)                 - - -    (2,592,749) 
       Infrastructure   (5,557,741)    (229,843)                 - - -     (5,787,584) 
        
Total Accumulated Depreciation (11,598,297)    (470,522)                 - - -  (12,068,819) 
 
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net     6,530,025    (196,484)                 - - -      6,333,541 
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net     6,796,858             (196,484)                 - - -       6,600,374 

 
 

Business-Type Activities 
 
  Capital Assets, Not 
    Being Depreciated: 
       Land          33,600             - - -                  - - -           33,600 
           33,600             - - -                  - - -           33,600 
  Capital Assets, 
    Being Depreciated:  
       Buildings and Systems   15,137,158      231,878        - - -    15,369,036 
       Equipment        448,334              - - -                  - - -         448,334 
     
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated   15,585,492      231,878                  - - -    15,817,370 
 
  Less Accumulated 
    Depreciation For: 
       Buildings   (8,482,736)    (285,968)        - - -    (8,768,704) 
       Equipment      (420,565)           (944)                 - - -              (421,509) 
     
Total Accumulated Depreciation   (8,903,301)    (286,912)                  - - -    (9,190,213) 
     
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net     6,682,191      (55,034)                  - - -       6,627,157 
     
Business Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $  6,715,791      (55,034)         $       - - - $   6,660,757 
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as follows: 
 
  Beginning  Ending  
  Balance Increases Decreases Balance 
Component Unit Activity - DDA 
 
  Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated: 
       Land $   32,400 $        - - -           $         - - -  $   32,400 
 
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated      32,400           - - -                  - - -      32,400 
  
  Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 
       Building Improvements    360,170           - - -                     - - -         360,710 
       Equipment      16,733      23,019                     - - -      39,752 
  
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated    377,443              23,019                      - - -     400,462 
 
  Less Accumulated Depreciation For: 
       Building Improvements  (139,831)   (13,490)             - - -    (153,321) 
       Equipment    (15,837)     (1,675)                      - - -    (17,512) 
       
Total Accumulated Depreciation  (155,668)   (15,165)                      - - -       (170,833) 
  
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net    221,775   (14,291)                      - - -    229,629 
 
Component Unit - DDA Capital Assets, Net $ 254,175 $    7,854           $         - - -       $ 262,029 
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows: 
 
 Governmental Activities: 
 
   General Government $   99,668 
 Public Safety    164,034 
 Public Works    134,832 
 Culture and Recreation      25,555 
 Capital Assets Held By The 
      Government’s Internal Service 
      Funds Are Charged To the Various 
      Functions Based On Their Usage 
      Of The Assets.      46,433 
 
  Total Depreciation Expense 
     Governmental Activities    470,522 
 
 
 Business-Type Activities: 
 
   Public Works    286,912 
 
  Total Depreciation Expense 
     Business-Type Activities    286,912 
 
 
 Component Unit Activities: 
 
   Equipment       1,675 
 Building Improvements      13,490 
 
  Total Depreciation Expense 
    Component Unit Activities $   15,165 
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NOTE 5 – TRANSFERS 
 
Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that is required to collect them to the fund that is 
required or allowed to expend them; (2) move receipts restricted, to or allowed for debt services from the funds 
collecting the receipts to the debt service payments become due; and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in 
the general fund to finance various programs, accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary 
authorizations. 

 
  

 Transfers Out 
  
Transfers In        General        Major          Income                                               Capital 

                                  Fund         Streets            Tax             Fire        Utilities     Improvements        Total 
     

General/Sidewalk      $       - - -        $       - - -       $187,000      $    - - -      $     - - -        $     - - -             $187,000 
Major Street                       - - -                 - - -               - - -        - - -             - - -               - - -                     - - - 
Fire        33,000                 - - -           62,480         - - -            - - -               - - -   95,480 
Capital Improvement     17,082                 - - -               - - -          6,501       75,852              - - -   99,435 
Ambulance       18,000                 - - -           70,000          - - -            - - -          - - -   88,000 
Local Street            - - -            70,000               - - -             - - -             - - -              - - -   70,000 
Cemetery        40,000                 - - -           60,000            - - -             - - -              - - -               100,000 
Industrial Park                    - - -                 - - -               - - -            - - -         - - -              - - -                      - - - 
Utilities                               - - -                 - - -         195,341            - - -             - - -         80,229               275,570 
 $108,082          $70,000        $574,821       $6,501     $ 75,852       $80,229             $915,485 
 

 
NOTE 6 – PROPERTY TAXES: 
 
The City bills and collects its own property taxes and also taxes for the County and several School Districts 
within its jurisdiction.  Collections and remittances of the County and School taxes are accounted for in the 
Current Tax Collection Agency Fund.  City property tax revenues are recognized as revenues in the fiscal year 
levied to the extent that they result in current receivables. 
 
Property taxes are assessed December 31

st
 and are levied on June 1

st
.  Taxes become delinquent on 

September 15 with a 1/2% interest charge beginning September 15
th
. All delinquent taxes are charged with a 

6% penalty. 
 
The City currently levies 13.4338 mills for operating and .9931 mills for ambulance.  Property taxes attach as an 
enforceable lien on the property as of January 1. 
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NOTE 7 – LONG TERM DEBT 
 
Long-term debt consists of the following: 
 
   Balance  Balance Due Within 
                                                       July 1, 2024        Additions          Deletions       June 30, 2025       One Year     
Business-Type Activities 
Wastewater Treatment 
   Plant - 2017 Bond $3,975,000      $    - - -  $230,000         $3,745,000 $235,000 
Sub-Total    3,975,000         - - -   230,000   3,745,000   235,000 
 
Governmental-Type Activities 
Notes Payable – 
   2017 Ambulance      105,262         - - -     25,071        80,191     25,883 
   Fire Truck      283,626         - - -      53,091      230,535     54,850 
   Capital Improvement Bond      631,000                   - - -      65,000      566,000     68,000 
   2008 Vacuum Truck                           101,991       - - -   24,026                77,965   25,011 
   Compensated Absences        44,153       5,379     44,153          5,379      5,379 
Sub-Total   1,166,032       5,379             211,341      960,070   179,123 
  
  
 Total $5,141,032 $    5,379  $441,341 $4,705,070 $414,123 

 
 
 
Ambulance – 2017 International 
 
Title of Issue: Ambulance – Note Payable – Old National Bank 
Purpose: Purchase 2 Ambulances 
Date of Note: October 7, 2017 
Maturity of Note: October 31, 2027 
Interest Rate: 3.24% 
Payments: Annually at $28,481 including interest – starting October 31, 2018 
Amount of Note: $240,000 
 
   
 

 
                                      Due Dates        Total  Interest Principle  
                            
                               October 31, 2025     28,481                 2,598                  25,883 
       October 31, 2026     28,481                 1,760                  26,721 
       October 31, 2027     28,481                    894                  27,587 
 
                                                                                        $  85,443           $    5,252              $  80,191 
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NOTE 8 – LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
  
City of Hudson – Capital Improvement Bond 
 
Title of Issue: 2021 Capital Investment Bond 
Purpose: Capital Investment Bond (Limited Tax General Obligation) 
Date of Issue: September 16, 2021 
Interest Rate: 5.500% 
Interest Payable: Semi-Annual on September 1, and March 1 of each year 
Amount of Issue: $750,000 

 
 Due Dates     Total   Interest     Principal 
  
 September 1, 2025        83,565     15,565        68,000 
 March 1, 2026        13,695     13,695 
 September 1, 2026        85,695     13,695        72,000 
 March 1, 2027        11,715     11,715 
 September 1, 2027        87,715     11,715        76,000 
 March 1, 2028          9,625       9,625 
 September 1, 2028        89,625       9,625        80,000 
 March 1, 2029          7,425       7,425 
 September 1, 2029        92,425       7,425        85,000 
 March 1, 2030          5,088       5,088 
 September 1, 2030        95,087       5,087        90,000 
 March 1, 2031          2,613       2,613 
 September 1, 2031                  97,612       2,612        95,000 
  
 
                                              $681,885             $115,885 $   566,000        
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NOTE 8 – LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

 
City of Hudson – 2019 Spartan Pumper 
 
Title of Issue: Fire Truck – Note Payable – Old National Bank 
Purpose: Purchase New Pumper Fire Truck 
Date of Issue: September 30, 2019 
Maturity of Note: October 31, 2028 
Interest Rate: 3.31% 
Amount of Note: $531,779 
Payments: Annually at $62,480.42 including interest – starting October 31, 2019 
 
 
 Due Dates Total   Interest Principal 
  
 October 31, 2025     62,481     7,631     54,850 
 October 31, 2026     62,481     5,816     56,665 

 October 31, 2027     62,481     3,940     58,541 
 October 31, 2028     62,481     2,002     60,479 
 
 $249,924 $ 19,389 $ 230,535 
 
 
 
City of Hudson – 2008 Combination Sewer Cleaner Vacuum Truck  
 
Title of Issue: Vacuum Truck- Note Payable- County National Bank  
Purpose: Purchase Vacuum Truck  
Date of Issue: August 9, 2022 
Maturity of Note:  August 9, 2027 
Interest Rate: 4.100% 
Amount of Note:  $ 125,000 
Payments:  Annually at 28,205 including interest starting August 9, 2023 
 
 Due Dates Total  Interest Principal 
  

 August 9, 2025    28,205    3,194     25,011 
 August 9, 2026    28,205    2,168     26,037 

 August 9, 2027                    28,204                      1,288      26,917 
   

      $   84,614                 $   6,649              $   77,965 
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NOTE 8 – LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

 
City of Hudson – Waste Water Treatment Plant Bond Issue 
 
Title of Issue: City of Hudson Waste Water Treatment Plant General 
 Obligation Bonds 
Purpose: Waste Water Treatment Plant Construction, etc. 
Date of Issue: December 15, 2017 
Interest Rate: 2.00% 
Interest Payable: Semi-Annual on October 1, and April 1, of each year 
Amount of Issue: $5,050,000 
 
 
 Due Dates Total   Interest  Principal 
  
 October 1, 2025      272,180     37,180      235,000 
 April 1, 2026        34,830     34,830 
 October 1, 2026      274,830     34,830      240,000 
 April 1, 2027        32,430     32,430 
 October 1, 2027      277,430     32,430      245,000 
 April 1, 2028        29,980     29,980 
 October 1, 2028      279,980     29,980      250,000 
 April 1, 2029        27,480     27,480 
 October 1, 2029      282,480     27,480      255,000 
 April 1, 2030        24,930     24,930 
 October 1, 2030      284,930     24,930      260,000 
 April 1, 2031        22,330     22,330 
 October 1, 2031      287,330     22,330      265,000 
 April 1, 2032        19,680     19,680 
 October 1, 2032      289,680     19,680      270,000 
 April 1, 2033        16,980     16,980 
 October 1, 2033      291,980     16,980      275,000 
 April 1, 2034        14,230     14,230 
 October 1, 2034      294,230     14,230      280,000 
 April 1, 2035        11,430     11,430 
 October 1, 2035      296,430     11,430      285,000 
 April 1, 2036          8,580       8,580 
 October 1, 2036      298,580       8,580      290,000 
 April 1, 2037          5,680       5,680 
 October 1, 2037      300,680       5,680      295,000 
 April 1, 2038          2,730       2,730 
 October 1, 2038      302,730       2,730      300,000 
 
 
 $4,284,760             $ 539,760 $3,745,000 
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Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
 
Maturities for the long-term debt are as follows: 

 
 Due Dates    Total    Principal     Interest 
  
 2026      528,816      414,123      114,693 
 2027      523,837      421,423      102,414 
 2028      523,917      434,045        89,872 
 2029      499,991      390,479        76,512 
 2030      404,923      340,000        64,923 
 2031-2035   1,728,112   1,535,000      193,112 
 2036-2039   1,215,410   1,170,000        45,410 
 
  $5,392,005 $4,705,070 $   686,935  

 
 

 
NOTE 9 – CAFETERIA PLAN – MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT PLAN – DEPENDENT CARE PLAN 
 
The City of Hudson has approved and adopted the Cafeteria Plan, Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan and 
Dependent Care Assistance Plan to be effective January 1, 1998. 
 
The City of Hudson adopted a Cafeteria Plan under Internal Revenue Service Code SS 125, a Medical Expense 
Reimbursement Plan under code SS 105 (b) and a Dependent Care Assistance Plan under Code SS 129.  Each 
full-time employee is eligible to participate in each of the plans established.  The maximum reimbursement for 
which any participant may apply under the Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan is $3,000.  The maximum 
reimbursement for which any participant may apply under the Dependent Care Assistance Plan is $5,000. 
 
The City of Hudson does not contribute to the Cafeteria Plan. 

 
NOTE 10 – PENSION PLAN 
 
The government offers all full-time employees a 401(k) plan which is a tax qualified defined contribution pension 
plan created in accordance with subsection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Codes.  The assets of the plans were 
held in custodial accounts as provided in IRC Section 401(k) for the exclusive benefit of the employees and their 
beneficiaries.  The custodian thereof for the exclusive benefit of the participants holds the custodial account for 
the beneficiaries, and the assets may not be diverted to any other use.  The administrators are agents of the 
employer for purposes of providing direction to the custodian of the custodial account from time to time for the 
investment of the funds held in the account transfer of assets to or from the account and all other matters.  In 
accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement 32, plan balances and activities are not reflected in the 
government’s financial statement.  Contributions are made by the city and employees.                                           
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_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NOTE 11 – OTHER INFORMATION 
 
Risk Management 
 
The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  During the year ended June 30, 2025, the 
government carried insurance through various commercial carriers, to cover all risks of losses.  The government 
has had no settled claims resulting from these risks that exceeded its commercial coverage in any of the past 
three fiscal years. 
 
NOTE 12 – RECEIVABLES 
 
Receivables of the governmental activities and business-type activities of the government at June 30, 2025, 
consist of the following: 

 
 Governmental Business-Type 
     Activities     Activities 
 
 Property Taxes/Assessments $  10,921  $       - - -    
 Income Taxes     95,602           - - - 
 Ambulance Runs / Fire     84,251           - - - 
 State of Michigan   124,229           - - - 
 Equipment Rent       3,768           - - - 
 Refuse     16,665           - - - 
 Utilities          - - -    145,832 
 Interest          - - -           - - - 
 Fiduciary          619                                - - - 
 
 Totals $336,055 $145,832 

 
 
Fiduciary receivables represent monies collected by the tax collection fund not remitted to the general fund by 
June 30, 2025. 
 
NOTE 13 – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 
 
At June 30, 2025, the following were interfund receivables and payables in the fund statement.   
 

                                                      Interfund                                     Interfund 
 Fund                  Receivables     Fund                   Payables 
  
 Major Street         $   3,388   Utilities $    3,388                                                    
                                              Total     $    3,388                  Total           $    3,388  
            

                           Motor Vehicles      $ 127,475             Ambulance            $ 127,475 
                                          Total      $ 127,475                    Total               $ 127,475 
 
                           General Fund       $        619              Tax Collection       $        619 
                       Total     $        619                     Total              $        619 
 

The monies represent loans or receivables between funds of the City, which are anticipated to be repaid within 
one year. These loans are made when one fund pays an invoice that is allocated to multiple other funds.             
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NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Management has reviewed the events occurring through September 4, 2025, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued. There were no subsequent events known that would affect these financial statements. 
 
NOTE 15 – INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments are stated at fair value.  Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. 
 Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current 
exchange rates.  Mortgages are valued on the basis of future principal and interest payments and are discounted 
at prevailing interest rates for similar instruments.  Investments that do not have established market values are 
reported at estimated fair value.  Cash deposits are reported at carrying amounts, which reasonably approximates 
fair value. 
 
Unrealized appreciation or depreciation on investments due to changes in fair value are recognized each year. 
 
Presently the City has investments in the Hudson Foundation a non-profit entity. As of the end of the fiscal year, 
all funds were held in certificates of deposit which are considered to be cash and cash equivalents (see Note 3). 
 
NOTE 16 – SEGMENT INFORMATION – ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
 
The government issued revenue bonds to finance certain improvements to its sewer distribution and treatment 
systems.  Because the Water and Sewer Funds, which are individual funds that account entirely for the 
government’s water distribution and treatment and sewage disposal and treatment activities, are reported as 
major funds in the fund financial statements, segment disclosures herein are not required. 
 
NOTE 17 – TAX ABATEMENTS 
 
The City enters into property tax abatement agreements with local businesses under Public Act 198 of 1974.  
Under the Act, localities may grant property tax abatements of up to 50 percent of a business’ property tax bill for 
the purpose of expanding or rehabilitating industrial facilities within their jurisdictions.  The abatements may be 
granted to any business located within or promising to relocate to the City. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, the City did not have any outstanding tax abatements. 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

General Fund 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

  Original Amended    Variance With 
   Budget  Budget  Actual Amended Budget  
 
Beginning of Year Fund Balance $   675,060 $   675,060  $   675,060 $        - - -  
  Resources (Inflows)   

 
   Taxes and Assessments      677,445      642,852      640,778      (2,074) 
   Intergovernmental      347,672      342,335      344,691        2,356 
   Grants          4,900          5,320          5,320           - - - 
   Licenses and Permits        15,450        16,016        17,530        1,514      
   Fines and Forfeitures          3,500          3,500          3,417           (83) 
   Charges for Services   1,125,492      1,226,714   1,239,495      12,781 
   Interest and Rentals        28,540        46,600        48,466        1,866 
   Other        24,000        53,267        59,490        6,223  
   Transfers from Other Funds             - - -        57,000      187,000    130,000 
    
 
 Amounts Available for 
   Appropriation   2,902,059   3,068,664   3,221,247    152,583 

 
 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows)    
  General Government 

 
     City Council        20,576        16,477        16,758         (281)  
     City Manager      118,765      122,922      113,999        8,923 
     Office Operations      160,290      160,677      150,698        9,979 
     Treasurer      108,108      102,673        95,730        6,943 
     Assessing        24,590        22,135        21,945           190 
     Clerk      105,628      105,386      100,725        4,661 
     Elections          5,050           6,826        12,572      (5,746) 
     City Attorney/Auditing        21,509        15,467        14,791           676 
     Buildings and Grounds        41,450        23,700        21,220        2,480 
       606,047      576,263      548,438      27,825 

 
  Public Safety    
 
     Police      528,707      375,994      340,694      35,300 
     Inspections          8,850        11,000          8,005        2,995 
       537,557      386,994      348,699      38,295 
 
  Community Economic Development 
  
     Zoning        11,885            315            302             13 
 
 
  Public Works     
   
     Mosquito Spraying          3,500             - - -             - - -           - - - 
     Sanitary Landfill          5,000          5,000          5,000           - - - 
     Street Maintenance & Lighting      704,415      793,887      722,546      71,341 
     Spring/Fall Cleanup          6,240            - - -             - - -           - - - 
     Refuse Collection      131,908      143,000      142,405           595 
       851,063      941,887       869,951       71,936 
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Concluded) 

General Fund 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

  Original Amended    Variance With 
   Budget  Budget  Actual Amended Budget  
 
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows) 
   (Continued)    
   
   
Other Functions       177,497      149,605       138,256      11,249 
 
Capital Outlay           2,500        67,755         76,824      (9,069) 
 
Transfers to Other Funds        145,083      108,083       108,082               1 
 
Debt Service 
   Principle Payments                                                  - - -                      - - -                       - - -                       - - - 
   Interest Payments                                                    - - -                      - - -                       - - -                       - - - 
 
  
 Total Charges  
   to Appropriations    2,331,632   2,230,902   2,090,652     140,250 
 
 Ending of Year 
   Fund Balance $    570,427 $   837,762 $1,130,595 $  292,833 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Ambulance Fund (Major Special Revenue Funds) 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
      

  Original  Amended    Variance With 
   Budget  Budget  Actual Amended Budget  
 
Beginning of Year Fund Balance $    4,264 $     4,264 $     4,264            $        - - -  
  Resources (Inflows)   
 
     Taxes      61,827        59,906      59,907              1 
     Charges for Services    608,100      63,159     628,018       4,859 
     Interest Income        3,000        4,484        4,422          (62) 
     Transfer In From Funds    183,491      88,000      88,000                      - - - 
     Other           - - -           - - -           - - -            - - - 
     Loan Proceeds           - - -           - - -           - - -                      - - -  
 
 Amounts Available for 
   Appropriation    860,727    779,813              784,611                   4,798 
 
 
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows)  
  Public Safety 
   
     Ambulance    794,856   810,660    763,384     47,276 
     Capital Outlay           - - -          - - -           - - -                      - - - 
     Transfer Out      - - -                    - - -                      - - -          - - - 
  Debt Service:  
     Principle Payments      36,756     36,755      25,071     11,684 
     Interest Payments        8,735       8,735        8,735            - - - 
 
  Total Charges  
   to Appropriations    840,347    856,150    797,190                 58,960 
 
 Ending of Year 
   Fund Balance $   20,380 $ (76,337) $  (12,579)           $   63,758 
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Income Tax Fund (Major Special Revenue Fund) 
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_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

  Original  Amended    Variance With 
   Budget   Budget  Actual Amended Budget  
 
Beginning of Year Fund Balance $244,530 $244,530 $244,530              $         - - - 
 
  Resources (Inflows)   
 
    Taxes   629,000   624,432   641,833      17,401 
    Interest and Rentals       1,500       5,900       6,500                  600  
    Other          - - -          - - -          - - -           - - - 
 
 Amounts Available for 
    Appropriation   875,030   874,862   892,863      18,001 
 
 
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows) 
 
General Government   163,806   178,648   173,377        5,271 
Transfers to Other Funds   601,552   444,824   574,821  (129,997) 
Capital Outlay          - - -          - - -          - - -           - - - 
   
  Total Charges 
   to Appropriations   765,358   623,472   748,198                 (124,726)  
 
 Ending of Year 
   Fund Balance $109,672           $251,390           $144,665              $(106,725) 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Fire Fund (Major Special Revenue Fund) 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

  Original Amended     Variance With 
   Budget   Budget  Actual Amended Budget  
 
Beginning of Year Fund Balance $139,990 $139,990 $139,990 $        - - - 
 
  Resources (Inflows)   
   
    Contribution from Local Units     90,454     86,971     87,539           568 
    Donations          800          300          300           - - - 
    Transfer in from Funds   106,481     95,481     95,480            (1) 
    Other Revenue          500          359       8,503        8,144 
    Interest and Rentals       3,000       5,063       5,090             27 

 
 Amounts Available for 
   Appropriation   341,225   328,164   336,902        8,738 
 
 
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows)  

Public Safety 
 
  Fire   138,438   135,296   112,422      22,874 
  Capital Outlay          - - -          - - -      6,987      (6,987) 
  Transfer Out                                                           - - -                6,501                 6,501                    - - - 
Debt Service: 
  Principle Payments                                            53,091              53,091               53,091                       - - - 
  Interest Payments                                               9,390                9,390                 9,390                        - - -       
   

  Total Charges  
   to Appropriations   200,919   204,278   188,391      15,887 
 
 Ending of Year 
   Fund Balance $140,306 $123,886 $148,511 $   24,625 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Major Street Fund (Major Special Revenue Fund) 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

  Original Amended    Variance With 
   Budget   Budget  Actual Amended Budget  
 
Beginning of Year Fund Balance $339,398 $339,398 $339,398 $        - - - 
 
  Resources (Inflows)   
   
     Intergovernmental   314,004   330,068   309,985    (20,083) 
     Interest and Rentals       7,500     12,742     12,878           136 
     Transfers from Other Funds          - - -          - - -          - - -           - - - 
     Other Revenue                                                       - - -                    - - -                   - - -                        - - - 
 
 Amounts Available for 
   Appropriation   660,902   682,208   662,261     (19,947) 
 
 
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows) 
 
     Public Works   347,344   245,330   180,651      64,679 
     Transfers to Other Funds     70,000     70,000     70,000           - - - 
   
  Total Charges 
   to Appropriations   417,344   315,330   250,651      64,679 
 
 Ending of Year 
   Fund Balance $243,558 $366,878 $411,610 $   44,732 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Local Street Fund (Major Special Revenue Fund) 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

  Original Amended    Variance With 
   Budget   Budget  Actual Amended Budget  
 
Beginning of Year Fund Balance $  90,951 $  90,951 $  90,951              $        - - - 
 
  Resources (Inflows)   
   
    Intergovernmental   116,540   124,754   117,142       (7,612) 
    Transfers from Other Funds   170,000     70,000     70,000           - - -   
    Interest Income       2,500       3,298       3,437            139 
 
 Amounts Available 
   for Appropriation   289,040   289,003   281,530       (7,473) 
 
 
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows) 
  

      Public Works   284,865   242,916   231,135        11,781 
   
  Total Charges 
   to Appropriations   284,865   242,916   231,135        11,781 
 
 Ending of Year 
   Fund Balance $    4,175 $  46,087 $  50,395  $     4,308 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Combining Balance Sheet 

Non-Major Governmental Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

            Special Revenue Funds                                 
                                                                                                                                                           Capital 
                                                                               Improvement 
  Recreation Cemetery                       Fund 
Assets 
 
Cash and Equivalents  $     482 $55,184                    $  40,440 
Investments         - - -        - - -                             - - - 
Receivables         - - -        - - -                             - - - 
 
 Total Assets         482   55,184                        40,440 
 
 
Liabilities and  
  Fund Balances 
 
Liabilities  
 
Accounts Payable         - - -   19,409                             - - - 
Deposits Payable         - - -        - - -                            - - - 
Accrued Liabilities         - - -        - - -                         10,376 
 
 Total Liabilities         - - -    19,409                        10,376 
 
 
Fund Balance    
 
Restricted For: 
   Summer Recreation         482                                      - - -                            - - - 
   Cemetery         - - -        35,775                            - - - 
   Community Center         - - -             - - -                             - - - 
   Museum         - - -             - - -                             - - -    
   Capital Improvement                                                - - -          - - -                        30,064 
 
Committed For: 
   Debt Service         - - -             - - -                             - - - 
 
 Total Fund Balances         482    35,775                        30,064 
 
 Total Liabilities 
   and Fund Balances  $     482 $55,184                    $  40,440 
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_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

     
          
            Special Revenue Funds                   Total     
          Non-Major    
 Community                                       Industrial             Governmental 
    Center                                 Museum     Park         Funds      

 
 
     34,534    10,397   12,172    153,209 
        - - -          - - -        - - -                   - - - 
        - - -         - - -         - - -            - - - 

 
 

   34,534    10,397   12,172    153,678 
 
 
  
   
 

  
 

          - - -              - - -        - - -      19,409 
     1,230                      - - -        - - -             1,230   
        - - -         - - -        - - -      10,376 

  
     1,230         - - -        - - -      31,015 

 

 

 

         - - -                - - -        - - -                482 
            - - -                       - - -        - - -                                                 35,775 

    33,304                - - -        - - -           33,304 
         - - -           10,397        - - -           10,397 
         - - -                                              - - -                         - - -                                                      30,064 
  
        - - -          - - -   12,172       12,172 
 

 
   33,304    10,397   12,172    122,194   

 

       $ 34,534  $10,397 $12,172  $153,209 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Non-Major Governmental Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
 
            Special Revenue Funds            

 
                                                                                                                                                               Capital 
                                     Improvement 

                                                                                    Recreation                        Cemetery                        Fund 
Revenues: 

 
Charges for Services  $     - - -                            $ 21,372                $          - - - 
Interest and Rents          30                                1,219                          2,999 
Other Revenue        - - -     - - -                             - - - 
Contributions        - - -                                    - - -                             - - - 

 
 Total Revenue          30                               22,591                         2,999 
 
 
Expenditures: 
 
General Government        - - -                               74,825                         - - - 
Recreational and Cultural        222                                   - - -                             - - - 
Capital Outlay        - - -                               20,000                            - - - 

 
 Total Expenditures        222                               94,825                            - - - 
 

 
Excess of Revenues Over  
  (Under) Expenditures     (192)                             (72,234)                         2,999 
 
 
Other Financing Sources (Uses):  
  
Operating Transfers In (Out)        - - -                            100,000                        19,206 
Bond Payments        - - -                                  - - -                       (65,000)  
Bond Interest            - - -                  - - -        (31,726) 
 Total Other Financing 
   Sources (Uses)                                                   - - -                            100,000                       (77,520) 
    
 
Excess of Revenues and Other  
  Sources Over (Under) 
  (Expenditures and Other Uses)      (192)                              27,766                     (74,521) 
 
 
Beginning Fund Balance        674                                8,009                      104,585 
 
Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $     482                           $ 35,775                $      30,064 
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   Special Revenue Funds        
                   Total         
             Non-Major       
 Community    Industrial  Governmental  
    Center    Museum     Park             Funds               
                    
 
           - - -           - - -        - - -                                21,372  

 20,011                   7,240        604             31,978 
     24,046                    75        - - -             25,956 
         - - -          - - -        - - -           - - - 

 
    44,057       9,025        604       79,306 
 
 
   
            - - -                    - - -     2,125         76,950 
        41,631             10,352        - - -            52,205  

     4,523          - - -        - - -       24,523 
 
    46,154      10,352     2,125     153,547 
 

 
 

        (2,097)                  (1,327)   (1,521)    (74,372) 
   

  

  

         - - -                   - - -        - - -                                     119,206 
             - - -                   - - -        - - -             (65,000) 
             - - -                                           - - -                           - - -                                            (31,726) 
  
             - - -           - - -         - - -                         22,480 
 

 
 

 
      (2,097)                           (1,327)    (1,521)     (51,892) 
 
  
    35,401     11,724   13,693    174,086 
 
 $ 33,304    $ 10,397 $12,172  $122,194 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Balance Sheet 

Component Units 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
     
 

                
   Downtown  Statement     
 Development        of 
    Authority Adjustments Net Position  
Assets 
   
Cash and Cash Equivalents                              $ 19,151 $       - - - $  19,151 
Capital Assets, Net                                                   - - -   262,029   262,029 
 
 Total Assets                                              19,151   262,029   281,180 
  
 
Liabilities 
   
Accounts Payable                                                     - - -         - - -           - - - 
Deferred Revenue            - - -          - - -          - - - 
 
 
 Total Liabilities            - - -          - - -          - - - 
 
 
Fund Balance/Net Position 
   
Unassigned                                                          19,151   (19,151)          - - - 
 
 Total Fund Balance                                  19,151    (19,151)          - - - 
 
 Total Liabilities and 
    Fund Balance                                     $ 19,151 
 

 

Net Position 
   
Invested in Capital Assets       262,209   262,209 
Unrestricted         19,151     19,151 
 
 
 Total Net Position      $281,180 $281,180 
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CITY OF HUDSON, MICHIGAN 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Component Units 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2025 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
     
 

               
   Downtown  Statement  
 Development     of 
    Authority Adjustments Net Position  
Revenues 
    
Miscellaneous Income                                   $      - - -  $         - - - $       - - - 
Rental Income       - - -            - - -          - - - 
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Asset                        - - -            - - -          - - - 
 
 Total Revenues                                          - - -             - - -           - - - 
  
 
Expenditures 
   
Depreciation       - - -       15,165         15,165 
Operating Expenses                                            1,001            - - -                        1,001 
Capital Outlay                                                   23,019                           (23,019)                          - - - 
 
 Total Expenditures                                24,020        (7,854)     16,166 
 
 
Excess of Revenue Over 
   (Under) Expenditures                                 (24,020)        7,854   (16,166) 
 
 
Fund Balance/Net Position 
   Beginning of Year                                        43,171     254,175   297,346 

 
Fund Balance/Net Position 
   End of Year                                               $  19,151 $  262,029 $281,180 
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